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(Check One)
R Excellent O Geod O Fair [ Detericrated D‘Ruint O Unexposed
CONDITION (Check One) (Check One)
- DX Altered 3 Unclrered ] Moved 8. Original Site

OESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (If known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Constructed of local granite, the Thomas Viaduct has proven to be a last-
ing tribute to its designer, Benjamin H. Latrobe. The viaduct is 612 feet
in length formed of eight semicircular arch spans varying in length from
58 feet 5 inches to 58 feet, 10-1/2 inches. Because of the route align-
ment at the time of construction, the structure was built on a four
degree curve and stands 59 feet above the river. The floor is 26-feet
wide, broad enough to hold a double tratk. 1In addition to the track, a
wooden-floored walkway, 4-feet in width and supported by cast-

iron brackets, is located on the deck of the viaduct. To aid pedestrains,
ornamental cast iron railings were erected upon the outermost edge of the
walkway. The granite is ashlar, roughly squared and dressed, laid in
‘cement mortar, with openings at the crown of each arch. Pilasters, made
of the same material, run from the top of each pier to the base. Crude
in execution, they visually support the massive form of the viaduct '
while enhancing the harmonious proportion and inherent grace of the Roman
arches. The structure contains 24,476 cubic yards of stone and cost
$142,236.51, to build. To counteract deterioration, the viaduct under-
went repairs in 1938, performed by the Baltimore and Ohio Maintenance of
Way Department. The work consisted mainly of improvements for drainage
and the application of a grout mixture to the stone spandrel filling.

At an unknown date railing biocks were removed from the north side of the
deck and a bracketed walkway added, giving more lateral clearance. Thomas
Viaduct is in excellent condition and has been in continuous service since
its construction in 1835.

33§

Thomas Viaduct is located on the Chesapeake and Ohio--Baltimore and Ohio
Railroad at the point where it crosses the Patapsco River. This is
approximately 2200 feet northwest of Interstate 95 at the point where it
crosses the tracks of the C§0-B§0 Railroad.

SNOILONYLSNI

The Thomas Viaduct exists today in an area heavily built up with major
highways extending from Baltimore to Washington. A modern road bridge
towers above the viaduct on the south and tends to diminish the massive
construction of the earlier structure. Because of existing intrusions
the landmark boundary-is drawn only to protect the structure itself and
its approaches, a distance of 50-feet from each end of the Thomas Viaduct
along the tracks of the railroad, including the railroad right of way
property and the McCartney monument.
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F. SIGNIFICANCE

PERIOD (Check One or More as Appropriate)

O Pre-Columbian) (O 16th Century [} 18th Century 3 20th Century
O 15th Century [ 17th Century 5 19th Century
SPECIFIC DATE!S) (If Applicable and Known) 1835
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Abor iginal O Education [ Political
{3 Prehistoric 8 Engineering [O Religion/Phi. [0 Other (Specity)
O Historic O industry losophy

[ Agriculture [ Invention [ Science

O Architecture [0 Lendscepe O : Sculpture

O An Architecture [ Sociel/Humon-

(] Commerce {3 Literature itarion

O Communications O Military 3 Theoter

{0 Conservation [ Music 0% Tronsportation

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

+

Still in use today, the Thomas Viaduct, located on the Chesapeake and Ohio;
Baltimore and Ohio Railroad line at the point where it crosses the
Patapsco River, is the world's oldest multiple stone arched railroad
bridge as well as America's earliest notable example of railroad bridge
construction. Designed in 1835 by Benjamin H. Latrobe, a civil engineer
and son of the architect of the same name, the bridge was, for its day,
of massive size, the largest in the country, dwarfing all contemporary
masonry works and marking the real beginning of the major railway
structure in America. Still impressive today, the structure has required
no major repairs or changes in its many years of service.

The original route of the Baltimore and Ohio Railroad left Baltimore City
near its southwest corner, following the Patapsco River to Ellicott's
‘Mills on its way westward. Shortly after this portion of the main stem
had been in operation it was realized that a rail connection with the
Nation's Capital was essential to the company's success, and construction
was begun in 1832. Where the new line branched from the old at Relay,
site of a former postroad hotel and changing point for stage horses, a
crossing of the Patapsco River was necessary. The Patapsco span, designed
by Benjamin H. Latrobe in 1835, was a structure remarkable in every aspect
of its conception. In laying out the route, Latrobe had to provide for
passage over the river which flowed through a deep ravine between Relay
and Elkridge Landing. The route alignment required that the viaduct
follow a four degree curve, giving rise to almost unprecedented problems
of design and construction. The present structure illustrates his answer
to the problem. Latrobe's design was executed by John McCartney, contractdr,
under the direction of Jonathan. Knight, principal assistant engineer and
Caspar Wever, superintendent of construction. When the structure was
finished a 15-foot monument with the names of the builder, directors of
the railroad, the architect, engineer, and others associated ‘with the
viaduct was constructed by the builder, John McCartney.

Until after the Civil War the B§O was the only railroad into Washington
and was used by Federal forces for supply trains, with heavy guards
stationed along the viaduct. The Baltimore and Ohio nawed the bridge the
"Thomas Viaduct'" after the company's president, Philip E. Thomas,
illustrating the company's confidence in the structure. Some skeptical
engineers however, thinking the bridge would collapse under its own weight}

(continued)
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8. Statement of Significance: (1) Thomas Viaduct

nicknamed the viaduct "Latrobe's Folly." The error in these predictions
is proven by the bridge itself. Since August 25, 1835, the viaduct has
remained in constant service, carrying every type of locomotive used in
the B§O's long history from the original six-ton engines of the period
to the 300-ton engines of today, with no alteration or major repair. All
main line traffic between Baltimore and the west passed over the Thomas
Viaduct until about 1870, when the main line was rerouted along the
Washington Branch. .
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THOMAS VIADUCT - 1835 - Relay. Reported to be the world's oldest multiple-arched
railroad bridge, built by the Baltimore and Ohio Railroad to span the Patapsco be-
tween Relay and Elkridge. Designed by Benjamin H. Latrobe, a Baltimore architect,
the bridge is built, on a curve, of huge blocks from the Granite Quarries. Named
for Philip E. Thomas, first president of the Baltimore and Ohio. A National His-

toric Site.

ST. TIMOTHY'S CHURCH (PROTESTANT EPISCOPAL) - 1844 - Ingleside Avenue. 0Of stone,
Gothic style, designed by Robert Carey Long at a cost of $10,000, one-half contri-
buted by John Glenn, prominent landowner. Private girl's school, established 1872,

continues today, but in another location.

OLD SALEM LUTHERAN CHURCH - 1849 - Ingleside Avenue. Founded by early German set-
tlers in the Catonsville area. Sermons and day school conducted in German for many

years.

MT. de. SALES ACADEMY - 1852 - Edmondson Avenue and Academy Lane. A convent and
school for girls, run by the Sisters of the Visitation.
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THE THOMAS VIADUCT - A NATIONAL HISTORIC SITE IN BALTIMORE COUNTY
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